
Special Meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Ocean Ridge 
held on Monday, February 9, 2009 in the Town Hall Meeting Chambers.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:00 AM by Chair Jim Bonfiglio and roll call was 
answered by the following: 
 
  Mark Marsh    Gerald Goray 
  Ward Northrup   Mauro Walker    

Dr. Richard Bajakian   Penny Kosinski 
      Chair Jim Bonfiglio 
 
III. APPROVAL OF JANUARY 12, 2009 MINUTES  
 
Dr. Bajakian moved to adopt the January 12, 2009 minutes, seconded by Ms. Kosinski. 

 
Motion carried – yea (7). 
 
IV. DISCUSS VARIOUS ZONING CODES AND ALSO SECTIONS THAT 

RELATE TO THE FLAT ROOF AREA, 75% SECOND FLOOR RULE, FLOOR 
AREA RATIO AND ALSO THE POSSIBILITY OF “GOING GREEN” 
INCENTIVES OR SCHEDULING FUTURE MEETING FOR SAME 

 
Clerk Hancsak summarized that at their January meeting they had briefly discussed the 
zoning codes as they relate to the flat roof area, 75% 2nd floor rule and floor area ratio 
(FAR) as it relates to a going green incentive.  She presented copies of the current zoning 
code concerning District Regulations and an outline of the variance requests to the Board 
of Adjustment in the last 10 years.  She explained that the majority of the variance 
requests were for wall/fence heights. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio noted that in the last 10 years only 32 variance requests had been 
submitted, and commented that the current zoning restrictions must be working.  Atty. 
Spillias reported that our staff, along with Hy-Byrd, worked with the applicants to 
confirm their criteria before presenting a variance request.   
 
Mauro Walker commented that the new constructed homes had an appearance of a lot of 
square feet.  He also stated he had a concern with the 300 sq feet height allowance.  Clerk 
Hancsak noted that some of the homes must utilize Old Ocean Blvd as the first floor 
elevation level, allowing for a basement or garage. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio started with the issue of flat roof area.  He noted that architects have 
been creative and given some new homes the appearance of flat roof.  He explained that 
the flat roof criteria had been reduced due to health and water run-off issues.  Clerk 
Hancsak reported that flat roofs could be increased from 15 to 20% to allow for balcony 
or porches.  The flat roof rule had also been changed to encourage older homes to change 
over to slope roofs to improve drainage.   
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING HELD JAN. 12, 2009 

 2

Mauro Walker stated that flat roofs allowed for the 75% ruling of the second floors, with 
a free 300 sq feet allowance for high ceilings, and that giving away square footage was 
wrong.   
 
Mark Marsh noted that slope roofs shed water more quickly.  Some people prefer regency 
styles with flat roofs, and that Ocean Ridge does not have an architectural review board 
as other towns have.  Dr. Bajakian asked if we should have an architectural committee.  
Mark Marsh noted that our code had been sufficient in the past, but Ocean Ridge could 
be going through a rebirth with a lot of tear downs, and should be prepared.  It’s 
subjective to personal levels and there may be methods to control without such a board. 
  
Jerry Goray suggested possibly deducting the garage area from the FAR, as this could 
allow younger families to build a larger home with increased living space.   
 
Bob Moore, retired Director of Planning, Zoning and Building for the Town of Palm 
Beach, was present to comment and give guidance on regulating zoning restrictions.  He 
stated that the Town of Palm Beach had similar problems and understood some of the 
challenges Ocean Ridge was encountering.   He first stated that architecture and 
aesthetics could not be regulated with Planning & Zoning, and the Town of Palm Beach 
used their architectural board instead.  He then discussed the differences of Palm Beach 
and Ocean Ridge’s height and set back restrictions, and feels they have been successful in 
the appearance of mass with a 14ft height versus 16ft.  He suggested possibly lowering it 
to 14ft height.  The Town of Palm Beach went from the FAR method to cubic content 
ratio. He stated that FAR worked better as it was more simplistic and easier to regulate 
and adjust.  He asked the board to envision what they wanted Ocean Ridge to look like 
and then make zoning changes to accommodate it.  He stated that Palm Beach required 
additional setback requirements for second floors 
 
Jerry Goray stated that besides the height of the tie beam for a first floor, did they see 
anything else that needs changing.  It was discussed that some towns limit the home 
styles and thus create cookie cutter homes, where all looks are the same and do not allow 
for innovation.  He also felt that our zoning ordinances were more restrictive with lot 
coverage than the Town of Palm Beach.  Mr. Moore suggested requiring additional 2nd 
floor setbacks, and changing the height to allow a sliding scale for sq footage.  Town of 
Palm Beach allows 40% sq footage for 1story homes, and 30% for 2 story homes. 
 
Atty. Spillias, representing Ocean Ridge, reported that Ocean Ridge did consider the 
cubic concept at one time, but decided to stay with FAR.  The dimensional issues of the 
code are good for mass but not aesthetics.  
 
Dr. Bajakian felt that Ocean Ridge was too restrictive and could affect our town 
valuations, and felt the code could be amended to allow for more volume.  The75% rule 
did not seem to affect the aesthetics of the properties as architects still can make them 
have an appearance of a flat roof.   
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING HELD JAN. 12, 2009 

 3

Speaking from the public, Brandon Caldwell, 66 Spanish River Drive, reported that the 
FAR was determining the size of his home, and asked that the square footage be based 
from the interior wall not the exterior wall.  He was building a new home in Ocean 
Ridge, and using “green” materials (insulated concrete forms) for his walls and they are 
thicker and thereby reduce the square footage of his new home.  He stated that the lot 
coverage would not be affected if this was changed, but it would greatly affect the 
interior space.   
 
At approximately 9:30 a.m.  Mr. Goray advised he had to leave, however, he commented 
that this commission should review the interior air conditioned space as it relates to the 
36% rule, in addition to the single store height. 
 
A discussion was held that Mr. Caldwell could not apply for a variance as it was self-
imposed – no home is there now.  A “Green Ordinance” could encourage the use of green 
materials that would allow an increase of FAR by a certain percent.  It was not known of 
any towns that allow FAR to be determined using the interior wall.  In 2005 a Federal 
Tax Reduction was implemented, with a $2000 incentive for solar panels, and other 
sustainable materials. 
 
A consensus was reached to meet again in 4-6 weeks without recommendation at this 
point, and to ask for more time to discuss all the items in further detail. 
 
Penny Kosinski asked how Ocean Ridge compares in restrictiveness to other towns, and 
Joe Crisafulle, Building Official for Ocean Ridge, stated it was comparable and seemed 
to work efficiently.  He also stated that he knew of one town that copied our FAR 
method, and is using it with no problem.  We adopt the Florida Building Code and it does 
not prevent solar panels and the government may have rebates for using them. 
 
Atty. Spillias, stated that he would survey other towns concerning “green” issues.  He 
was a chairman of the West Palm Beach Planning Board, where their homes have 5ft 
setbacks and 7000 sq ft homes.  West Palm Beach was having problems of people 
maximizing their lot coverage and overshadowing smaller homes. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio stated that Ocean Ridge wanted to preserve the smaller lifestyle; he 
also stated that people had expanded their homes, and now with reducing prices, the 
homes have not maintained their values.  He could also foresee problems with vacant 
homes from foreclosures. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:02 AM. 
     
       ____________________________ 
       Chairman Bonfiglio  
Attest: 
_____________________________ 
Town Clerk 


